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210.62 Evidentiary hearing. 
210.63 Proposed findings and conclusions 

and briefs. 
210.64 Interlocutory appeals. 
210.65 Certification of the record. 
210.66 Initial determination concerning 

temporary relief; Commission action 
thereon. 

210.67 Remedy, the public interest, and 
bonding by respondents. 

210.68 Complainant’s temporary relief bond. 
210.69 Approval of complainant’s temporary 

relief bond.

Subpart I—Enforcement Procedures and 
Advisory Opinions

210.70 Forfeiture or return of complainant’s 
temporary relief bond. 

210.71 Information gathering. 
210.72 Confidentiality of information. 
210.73 Review of reports. 
210.74 Modification of reporting require-

ments. 
210.75 Proceedings to enforce exclusion or-

ders, cease and desist orders, consent or-
ders, and other Commission orders. 

210.76 Modification or rescission of exclu-
sion orders, cease and desist orders, and 
consent orders. 

210.77 Temporary emergency action. 
210.78 Notice of enforcement action to Gov-

ernment agencies. 
210.79 Advisory opinions.

AUTHORITY: 19 U.S.C. 1333, 1335, and 1337.

SOURCE: 59 FR 39039, Aug. 1, 1994, unless 
otherwise noted.

Subpart A—Rules of General 
Applicability

§ 210.1 Applicability of part. 
The rules in this part apply to inves-

tigations under section 337 of the Tariff 
Act of 1930 and related proceedings. 
These rules are authorized by sections 
333, 335, or 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 
(19 U.S.C. §§ 1333, 1335, and 1337) and sec-
tions 2 and 1342(d)(1)(B) of the Omnibus 
Trade and Competitiveness Act of 1988, 
Pub. L. No. 100–418, 102 Stat. 1107 (1988).

§ 210.2 General policy. 
It is the policy of the Commission 

that, to the extent practicable and con-
sistent with requirements of law, all 
investigations and related proceedings 
under this part shall be conducted ex-
peditiously. The parties, their attor-
neys or other representatives, and the 
presiding administrative law judge 
shall make every effort at each stage of 

the investigation or related proceeding 
to avoid delay.

§ 210.3 Definitions. 

As used in this part— 
Administrative law judge means the 

person appointed under section 3105 of 
title 5 of the United States Code who 
presides over the taking of evidence in 
an investigation under this part. If the 
Commission so orders or a section of 
this part so provides, an administrative 
law judge also may preside over stages 
of a related proceeding under this part. 

Commission investigative attorney 
means a Commission attorney des-
ignated to engage in investigatory ac-
tivities in an investigation or a related 
proceeding under this part. 

Complainant means a person who has 
filed a complaint with the Commission 
under this part, alleging a violation of 
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930. 

Intervenor means a person who has 
been granted leave by the Commission 
to intervene as a party to an investiga-
tion or a related proceeding under this 
part. 

Investigation means a formal Commis-
sion inquiry instituted to determine 
whether there is a violation of section 
337 of the Tariff Act of 1930. An inves-
tigation is instituted upon publication 
of a notice in the FEDERAL REGISTER. 
The investigation entails postinsti-
tution adjudication of the complaint. 
An investigation can also involve the 
processing of one or more of the fol-
lowing: A motion to amend the com-
plaint and notice of investigation; a 
motion for temporary relief; a motion 
to designate ‘‘more complicated’’ the 
temporary relief stage of the investiga-
tion; an interlocutory appeal of an ad-
ministrative law judge’s decision on a 
particular matter; a motion for sanc-
tions for abuse of process, abuse of dis-
covery, or failure to make or cooperate 
in discovery, which if granted, would 
have an impact on the adjudication of 
the merits of the complaint; a petition 
for reconsideration of a final Commis-
sion determination; a motion for ter-
mination of the investigation in whole 
or part; and procedures undertaken in 
response to a judgment or judicial 
order issued in an appeal of a Commis-
sion determination or remedial order 
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issued under section 337 of the Tariff 
Act of 1930. 

Party means each complainant, re-
spondent, intervenor, or Commission 
investigative attorney. 

Proposed intervenor means any person 
who has filed a motion to intervene in 
an investigation or a related pro-
ceeding under this part. 

Proposed respondent means any person 
named in a complaint filed under this 
part as allegedly violating section 337 
of the Tariff Act of 1930. 

Related proceeding means 
preinstitution proceedings, sanction 
proceedings (for the possible issuance 
of sanctions that would not have a 
bearing on the adjudication of the mer-
its of a complaint or a motion under 
this part), bond forfeiture proceedings, 
proceedings to enforce, modify, or re-
voke a remedial or consent order, or 
advisory opinion proceedings. 

Respondent means any person named 
in a notice of investigation issued 
under this part as allegedly violating 
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930. 

[59 FR 39039, Aug. 1, 1994, as amended at 59 
FR 67626, Dec. 30, 1994]

§ 210.4 Written submissions; represen-
tations; sanctions. 

(a) Caption; names of parties. The 
front page of every written submission 
filed by a party or a proposed party to 
an investigation or a related pro-
ceeding under this part shall contain a 
caption setting forth the name of the 
Commission, the title of the investiga-
tion or related proceeding, the docket 
number or investigation number, if 
any, assigned to the investigation or 
related proceeding, and in the case of a 
complaint, the names of the complain-
ant and all proposed respondents. 

(b) Signature. Every pleading, written 
motion, and other paper of a party or 
proposed party who is represented by 
an attorney in an investigation or a re-
lated proceeding under this part shall 
be signed by at least one attorney of 
record in the attorney’s individual 
name. A party or proposed party who is 
not represented by an attorney shall 
sign, or his duly authorized officer or 
agent shall sign, the pleading, written 
motion, or other paper. Each paper 
shall state the signer’s address and 
telephone number, if any. Pleadings, 

written motions, and other papers need 
not be under oath or accompanied by 
an affidavit, except as provided in 
§§ 210.12(a)(1), 210.13(b), 210.18, 210.52(d), 
210.59(b), or another section of this part 
or by order of the administrative law 
judge or the Commission. If a pleading, 
motion, or other paper is not signed, it 
shall be stricken unless it is signed 
promptly after omission of the signa-
ture is called to the attention of the 
submitter. 

(c) Representations. By presenting to 
the presiding administrative law judge 
or the Commission (whether by sign-
ing, filing, submitting, or later advo-
cating) a pleading, written motion, or 
other paper, an attorney or unrepre-
sented party or proposed party is certi-
fying that to the best of the person’s 
knowledge, information, and belief, 
formed after an inquiry reasonable 
under the circumstances— 

(1) It is not being presented for any 
improper purpose, such as to harass or 
to cause unnecessary delay or needless 
increase in the cost of the investiga-
tion or related proceeding; 

(2) The claims, defenses, and other 
legal contentions therein are war-
ranted by existing law or by a non-
frivolous argument for the extension, 
modification, or reversal of existing 
law or the establishment of new law; 

(3) The allegations and other factual 
contentions have evidentiary support 
or, if specifically so identified, are like-
ly to have evidentiary support after a 
reasonable opportunity for further in-
vestigation or discovery; and 

(4) The denials of factual contentions 
are warranted on the evidence or, if 
specifically so identified, are reason-
ably based on a lack of information or 
belief. 

(d) Sanctions. If, after notice and a 
reasonable opportunity to respond (see 
paragraphs (d)(1) (i) and (ii) of this sec-
tion and § 210.25), the presiding admin-
istrative law judge or the Commission 
determines that paragraph (c) of this 
section has been violated, the adminis-
trative law judge or the Commission 
may, subject to the conditions stated 
below and in § 210.25, impose an appro-
priate sanction upon the attorneys, law 
firms, or parties that have violated 
paragraph (c) or are responsible for the 
violation. A representation need not be 
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frivolous in its entirety in order for the 
administrative law judge or the Com-
mission to determine that paragraph 
(c) has been violated. If any portion of 
a representation is found to be false, 
frivolous, misleading, or otherwise in 
violation of paragraph (c), a sanction 
may be imposed. In determining wheth-
er paragraph (c) has been violated, the 
administrative law judge or the Com-
mission will consider whether the rep-
resentation or disputed portion thereof 
was objectively reasonable under the 
circumstances. 

(1) How initiated—(i) By motion. A mo-
tion for sanctions under this section 
shall be made separately from other 
motions or requests and shall describe 
the specific conduct alleged to violate 
paragraph (c). It shall be served as pro-
vided in paragraph (g) of this section, 
but shall not be filed with or presented 
to the presiding administrative law 
judge or the Commission unless, within 
seven days after service of the motion 
(or such other period as the adminis-
trative law judge or the Commission 
may prescribe), the challenged paper, 
claim, defense, contention, allegation, 
or denial is not withdrawn or appro-
priately corrected. See also § 210.25 (a) 
through (c). If warranted, the adminis-
trative law judge or the Commission 
may award to the party or proposed 
party prevailing on the motion the rea-
sonable expenses and attorney’s fees 
incurred in presenting or opposing the 
motion. Absent exceptional cir-
cumstances, a law firm shall be held 
jointly responsible for violations com-
mitted by its partners, associates, and 
employees. 

(ii) On the administrative law judge’s or 
the Commission’s initiative. The adminis-
trative law judge or the Commission 
may enter an order sua sponte describ-
ing the specific conduct that appears to 
violate paragraph (c) of this section 
and directing an attorney, law firm, 
party, or proposed party to show cause 
why it has not violated paragraph (c) 
with respect thereto. 

(2) Nature of sanctions; limitations. A 
sanction imposed for violation of para-
graph (c) of this section shall be lim-
ited to what is sufficient to deter rep-
etition of such conduct or comparable 
conduct by others similarly situated. 
Subject to the limitations in para-

graphs (d)(2) (i) through (iv) of this sec-
tion, the sanction may consist of, or 
include, directives of a nonmonetary 
nature, an order to pay a penalty, or, if 
imposed on motion and warranted for 
effective deterrence, an order directing 
payment to the movant of some or all 
of the reasonable attorney’s fees and 
other expenses incurred as a direct re-
sult of the violation. 

(i) Monetary sanctions shall not be 
imposed under this section against the 
United States, the Commission, or a 
Commission investigative attorney. 

(ii) Monetary sanctions may not be 
awarded against a represented party or 
proposed party for a violation of para-
graph (c)(2) of this section. 

(iii) Monetary sanctions may not be 
imposed on the administrative law 
judge’s or the Commission’s initiative 
unless— 

(A) The Commission or the adminis-
trative law judge issues an order to 
show cause before the investigation or 
related proceeding is terminated, in 
whole or in relevant part, as to the 
party or proposed party which is, or 
whose attorneys are, to be sanctioned; 
and 

(B) Such termination is the result 
of— 

(1) A motion to withdraw the com-
plaint, motion, or petition that was the 
basis for the investigation or related 
proceeding; 

(2) A settlement agreement; 
(3) A consent order agreement; or 
(4) An arbitration agreement. 
(iv) Monetary sanctions imposed to 

compensate the Commission for ex-
penses incurred by a Commission inves-
tigative attorney or the Commission’s 
Office of Unfair Import Investigations 
will include reimbursement for some or 
all costs reasonably incurred as a di-
rect result of the violation, but will 
not include attorney’s fees. 

(3) Order. When imposing sanctions, 
the administrative law judge or the 
Commission shall describe the conduct 
determined to constitute a violation of 
this rule and explain the basis for the 
sanction imposed. See also § 210.25(d)—
(f). 

(e) Inapplicability to discovery. Para-
graphs (c) and (d) of this section do not 
apply to discovery requests, responses, 
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objections, and motions that are sub-
ject to provisions of §§ 210.27 through 
210.34. 

(f) Specifications; filing of documents. 
(1)(i) Written submissions that are ad-
dressed to the Commission during an 
investigation or a related proceeding 
shall comply with § 201.8 of this chap-
ter, except for the provisions regarding 
the number of copies to be submitted. 
The required number of copies shall be 
governed by paragraph (f)(2) of this sec-
tion. Written submissions may be pro-
duced by standard typographic printing 
or by a duplicating or copying process 
which produces a clear black image on 
white paper. If the submission is pro-
duced by other than the standard typo-
graphical process used by commercial 
printers, typed matter shall not exceed 
61⁄2 by 91⁄2 inches using 10-pitch (pica) or 
larger pitch type or 51⁄2 by 81⁄2 inches 
using 11-point or larger proportional 
spacing type, and shall be double-
spaced between each line of text using 
the standard of 6 lines of type per inch. 
Text and footnotes shall be in the same 
size type. Quotations more than two 
lines long in the text or footnotes may 
be indented and single-spaced. Head-
ings and footnotes may be single-
spaced. 

(ii) The administrative law judge 
may impose any specifications he 
deems appropriate for submissions that 
are addressed to the administrative law 
judge. 

(2) Unless the Commission or another 
section of this part specifically states 
otherwise, the original and 6 true cop-
ies of each submission shall be filed if 
the investigation or related proceeding 
is before an administrative law judge, 
and the original and 14 true copies of 
each submission shall be filed if the in-
vestigation or related proceeding is be-
fore the Commission. 

(3)(i) If a complaint, a supplement to 
a complaint, a motion for temporary 
relief, or the documentation supporting 
a motion for temporary relief contains 
confidential business information as 
defined in § 201.6(a) of this chapter, the 
complainant shall file nonconfidential 
copies of the complaint, the supple-
ment to the complaint, the motion for 
temporary relief, or the documentation 
supporting the motion for temporary 
relief concurrently with the requisite 

confidential copies, as provided in 
§ 210.8(a) of this part. 

(ii) Persons who file the following 
submissions that contain confidential 
business information covered by an ad-
ministrative protective order, or that 
are the subject of a request for con-
fidential treatment, must file noncon-
fidential copies and serve them on the 
other parties to the investigation or re-
lated proceeding within 10 calendar 
days after filing the confidential 
version with the Commission: 

(A) A response to a complaint and all 
supplements and exhibits thereto; 

(B) All submissions relating to a mo-
tion to amend the complaint or notice 
of investigation; and 

(C) All submissions addressed to the 
Commission. 

Other sections of this part may re-
quire, or the Commission or the admin-
istrative law judge may order, the fil-
ing and service of nonconfidential cop-
ies of other kinds of confidential sub-
missions. If the submitter’s ability to 
prepare a nonconfidential copy is de-
pendent upon receipt of the noncon-
fidential version of an initial deter-
mination, or a Commission order or 
opinion, or a ruling by the administra-
tive law judge or the Commission as to 
whether some or all of the information 
at issue is entitled to confidential 
treatment, the nonconfidential copies 
of the submission must be filed within 
10 calendar days after service of the 
Commission or administrative law 
judge document in question. The time 
periods for filing specified in this para-
graph apply unless the Commission, 
the administrative law judge, or an-
other section of this part specifically 
provides otherwise. 

(g) Service. Unless the Commission, 
the administrative law judge, or an-
other section of this part specifically 
provides otherwise, every written sub-
mission filed by a party or proposed 
party shall be served on all other par-
ties in the manner specified in 
§ 201.16(b) of this chapter. 

[59 FR 39039, Aug. 1, 1994; 59 FR 64286, Dec. 14, 
1994, as amended at 59 FR 67626, Dec. 30, 1994; 
60 FR 32443, June 22, 1995]

VerDate Mar<21>2002 10:34 Apr 16, 2002 Jkt 197058 PO 00000 Frm 00129 Fmt 8010 Sfmt 8010 Y:\SGML\197058T.XXX pfrm03 PsN: 197058T



130

19 CFR Ch. II (4–1–02 Edition)§ 210.5

§ 210.5 Confidential business informa-
tion. 

(a) Definition and submission. Con-
fidential business information shall be 
defined and identified in accordance 
with § 201.6 (a) and (c) of this chapter. 
Unless the Commission, the adminis-
trative law judge, or another section of 
this part states otherwise, confidential 
business information shall be sub-
mitted in accordance with § 201.6(b) of 
this chapter. In the case of a com-
plaint, any supplement to the com-
plaint, and a motion for temporary re-
lief filed under this part, the number of 
nonconfidential copies shall be pre-
scribed by § 210.8(a) of this part. 

(b) Restrictions on disclosure. Informa-
tion submitted to the Commission or 
exchanged among the parties in con-
nection with an investigation or a re-
lated proceeding under this part, which 
is properly designated confidential 
under paragraph (a) of this section and 
§ 201.6(a) of this chapter, may not be 
disclosed to anyone other than the fol-
lowing persons without the consent of 
the submitter: 

(1) Persons who are granted access to 
confidential information under 
§ 210.39(a) or a protective order issued 
pursuant to § 210.34(a); 

(2) An officer or employee of the 
Commission who is directly concerned 
with— 

(i) Carrying out or maintaining the 
records of the investigation or related 
proceeding for which the information 
was submitted; 

(ii) The administration of a bond 
posted pursuant to subsection (e), (f), 
or (j) of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 
1930; 

(iii) The administration or enforce-
ment of an exclusion order issued pur-
suant to subsection (d), (e), or (g), a 
cease and desist order issued pursuant 
to subsection (f), or a consent order 
issued pursuant to subsection (c) of 
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930; or 

(iv) Proceedings for the modification 
or rescission of a temporary or perma-
nent order issued under subsection (d), 
(e), (f), (g), or (i) of section 337 of the 
Tariff Act of 1930, or a consent order 
issued under section 337 of the Tariff 
Act of 1930; 

(3) An officer or employee of the 
United States Government who is di-

rectly involved in a review conducted 
pursuant to section 337(j) of the Tariff 
Act of 1930; or 

(4) An officer or employee of the 
United States Customs Service who is 
directly involved in administering an 
exclusion from entry under section 337 
(d), (e), or (g) of the Tariff Act of 1930 
resulting from the investigation or re-
lated proceeding in connection with 
which the information was submitted. 

(c) Transmission of certain records to 
district court. Notwithstanding para-
graph (b) of this section, confidential 
business information may be trans-
mitted to a district court and be ad-
missible in a civil action, subject to 
such protective order as the district 
court determines necessary, pursuant 
to 28 U.S.C. 1659. 

(d) Confidentiality determinations in 
preinstitution proceedings. After a com-
plaint is filed under section 337 of the 
Tariff Act of 1930 and before an inves-
tigation is instituted by the Commis-
sion, confidential business information 
designated confidential by the supplier 
shall be submitted in accordance with 
§ 201.6(b) of this chapter. The Secretary 
shall decide, in accordance with 
§ 201.6(d) of this chapter, whether the 
information is entitled to confidential 
treatment. Appeals from the ruling of 
the Secretary shall be made to the 
Commission as set forth in § 201.6(e) 
and (f) of this chapter. 

(e) Confidentiality determinations in in-
vestigations and other related pro-
ceedings. (1) If an investigation is insti-
tuted or if a related proceeding is as-
signed to an administrative law judge, 
the administrative law judge shall set 
the ground rules for the designation, 
submission, and handling of informa-
tion designated confidential by the 
submitter. When requested to do so, 
the administrative law judge shall de-
cide whether information in a docu-
ment addressed to the administrative 
law judge, or to be exchanged among 
the parties while the administrative 
law judge is presiding, is entitled to 
confidential treatment. The adminis-
trative law judge shall also decide, 
with respect to all orders, initial deter-
minations, or other documents issued 
by the administrative law judge, 
whether information designated con-
fidential by the supplier is entitled to 
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confidential treatment. The supplier of 
the information or the person seeking 
the information may, with leave of the 
administrative law judge, request an 
appeal to the Commission of the ad-
ministrative law judge’s unfavorable 
ruling on this issue, under § 210.24(b)(2). 

(2) The Commission may continue 
protective orders issued by the admin-
istrative law judge, amend or revoke 
those orders, or issue new ones. All 
submissions addressed to the Commis-
sion that contain information covered 
by an existing protective order will be 
given confidential treatment. (See also 
§ 210.72.) New information that is sub-
mitted to the Commission, designated 
confidential by the supplier, and not 
covered by an existing protective order 
must be submitted to the Secretary 
with a request for confidential treat-
ment in accordance with § 201.6(b) and 
(c) of this chapter. The Secretary shall 
decide, in accordance with § 201.6(d) of 
this chapter, whether the information 
is entitled to confidential treatment. 
Appeals from the ruling of the Sec-
retary shall be made to the Commis-
sion as provided in § 201.6(e) and (f) of 
this chapter. The Commission shall de-
cide, with respect to all orders, notices, 
opinions, and other documents issued 
by or on behalf of the Commission, 
whether information designated con-
fidential by the supplier is entitled to 
confidential treatment. 

[59 FR 39039, Aug. 1, 1994, as amended at 59 
FR 67626, Dec. 30, 1994; 60 FR 32444, June 22, 
1995]

§ 210.6 Computation of time, addi-
tional hearings, postponements, 
continuances, and extensions of 
time. 

Unless the Commission, the adminis-
trative law judge, or another section of 
this part specifically provides other-
wise, the computation of time and the 
granting of additional hearings, post-
ponements, continuances, and exten-
sions of time shall be in accordance 
with §§ 201.14 and 201.16(d) of this chap-
ter. Whenever a party has the right or 
is required to perform some act or to 
take some action within a prescribed 
period after service of a document upon 
it, and the document was served by 
mail, the deadline shall be computed 
by adding to the end of the prescribed 

period the additional time allotted 
under § 201.16(d), unless the Commis-
sion, the administrative law judge, or 
another section of this part specifically 
provides otherwise.

§ 210.7 Service of process and other 
documents; publication of notices. 

(a) Manner of service. The service of 
process and all documents issued by or 
on behalf of the Commission or the ad-
ministrative law judge—and the service 
of all documents issued by parties 
under §§ 210.27 through 210.34 of this 
part—shall be in accordance with 
§ 201.16 of this chapter, unless the Com-
mission, the administrative law judge, 
or another section of this part specifi-
cally provides otherwise. 

(b) Publication of notices. (1) Notice of 
action by the Commission or an admin-
istrative law judge will be published in 
the FEDERAL REGISTER only as specifi-
cally provided in paragraph (b)(2) of 
this section, by another section in this 
chapter, or by order of an administra-
tive law judge or the Commission. 

(2) When an administrative law judge 
or the Commission determines to 
amend or supplement a notice pub-
lished in accordance with paragraph 
(b)(1) of this section, notice of the 
amendment will be published in the 
FEDERAL REGISTER. 

[60 FR 53119, Oct. 12, 1995]

Subpart B—Commencement of 
Preinstitution Proceedings and 
Investigations

§ 210.8 Commencement of preinstitu-
tion proceedings. 

(a) Upon receipt of complaint. A 
preinstitution proceeding is com-
menced by filing with the Secretary a 
signed original complaint and the req-
uisite number of true copies. The com-
plainant shall file 14 confidential cop-
ies of the complaint, 14 nonconfidential 
copies, plus one confidential copy and 
one nonconfidential copy for each per-
son named in the complaint as vio-
lating section 337 of the Tariff Act of 
1930, and one nonconfidential copy for 
the government of each foreign coun-
try of any person or persons so named. 
The same requirements apply for the 
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